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M E M O R A N D U M  
April 13, 2009

TO:

George Bell, Chairman

Lake County Zoning Board of Appeals

FROM:

Bob Mosteller, Deputy Director

Lake County Department of Planning, Building and Development

CASE NO:


3764 Rezoning
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Rezoning from the Agricultural (AG) zoning district to the General Commercial (GC) zoning district.

HEARING DATE:

April  21, 2009

GENERAL INFORMATION

APPLICANTS:
Mason Aron

# OF PARCELS:

one

SIZE:



0.91 acre

LOCATION:


26899 W. Grass Lake Road, Antioch, IL.

EXISTING ZONING:

Agricultural

PROPOSED ZONING:
General Commercial
EXISTING 


LAND USE:


none

PROPOSED LAND USE:
Yet to be determined by applicant

SURROUNDING ZONING / LAND USE

NORTH, EAST,

and SOUTHWEST:

Agricultural / single-family dwellings


EAST:                                     Woodland (also owned by the applicant)

SOUTH:


Open Space / channel of Fox Lake

SOUTHEAST:                        Recreational Commercial / RV park and marina

NORTHWEST:

Residential-1 / single-family dwellings

WEST:


General Commercial / auto repair shop
COMPREHENSIVE PLANS
LAKE COUNTY: 



Agricultural 

MUNICIPALITIES WITHIN  11/2 MILES:
Village of Fox Lake: not designated







Village of Lake Villa: not designated
DETAILS OF REQUEST
ACCESS:
Direct access is provided via Grass Lake Road.

FLOODPLAIN / WETLAND:
According to the County’s GIS, the property is not in a floodplain and does not contain any wetlands. However, an on-site inspection will be required to confirm this.
SEWER AND WATER:
Private well and septic system.

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS
Although not required by the UDO, the applicant has not identified any proposed use for the subject property. The application states “If rezoned I could sell this property off saving me future taxes on property which I can’t use”.

Recent tree removal has occurred on the subject property. However, the majority of these trees were black locusts which are not a protected species and, furthermore, the tree protection standards of the UDO are not applicable because the area sought to be rezoned is less than 40,000 sq. ft. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends denial of the rezoning request.  In our opinion the request does not meet the required standards in the following manner:  

Map Amendment Approval Criteria – UDO Section 3.3.8

Standard A:
The proposed amendment is consistent with the stated purpose and intent of Sec. 1.5.

Comment:
The General Commercial zoning district is not consistent with the Framework Plan which designates the property as Agricultural.

Standard B:
The proposed amendment corrects an error or inconsistency or meets the challenge of some changing condition in the area.

Comment:
The applicant has not identified an error or inconsistency in the immediate area to justify a rezoning.  
Standard C:
The proposed amendment will allow development that is compatible with existing uses and zoning of nearby property.

Comment:   
The proposed zoning is only compatible with the use immediately to the west which is currently improved with an auto repair business.  To the north, east, and southwest is zoned Agricultural with single-family dwellings; northwest is Residential-1 with single-family dwellings; and southeast is zoned Recreational Commercial  with recreational uses.  The property is adjacent to a floodplain and wetland approximately 50-feet to the east.

Standard D:
The County and other service providers will be able to provide adequate public facilities and services to the property, while maintaining adequate levels of service to existing development.

Comment: 
The property does not have access to public sewer and water.  The property abuts Grass Lake Road which is classified as a “collector” road designation.  However, poor traffic sight-lines may exist due to its location along the curve of Grass Lake Road.

Standard E:
The proposed amendment will not result in significant adverse impacts on other property in the vicinity of the subject tract or on the environment, including air, water, noise, stormwater management, wildlife and natural resources.

Comment: 
For a use within the General Commercial zoning district which abuts a property with a single-family dwelling, the UDO requires 3-canopy trees, 6-understory trees, 6-evergreen trees, and 21-shrubs per 100-feet along with a minimum 6-foot high solid fence or a 3-feet high berm.  If the property is rezoned, staff assumes the UDO would afford sufficient protection to the adjacent property owner to the southwest.  

Standard F:
The subject property is suitable for the proposed zoning classification.

Comment: 
The property contains a substantial number of large trees. Any significant development could result with the loss of additional trees. Further as the property contains a low elevation, it would be necessary to fill the property in order to meet the elevation of the existing road.  
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